### DRAFT

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

## **HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD**

# MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 2017

**Present**: Dr Bal Bahia (Newbury and District CCG), Rachael Wardell (WBC - Community Services), Cathy Winfield (Berkshire West CCGs), Councillor James Fredrickson (Executive Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing) and Jim Weems (Thames Valley Police)

**Also Present:** Andrew Sharp (Healthwatch), Jo Reeves (Principal Policy Officer) and Susan Powell (Building Communities Together Team Manager)

**Apologies for inability to attend the meeting:** Neil Carter, Luke Bingham, Garry Poulson, Dr Barbara Barrie, Councillor Lynne Doherty, Councillor Graham Jones, Councillor Mollie Lock, Councillor Rick Jones and Councillor Marcus Franks

#### **PARTI**

#### 76 Declarations of Interest

During the course of the meeting Councillor James Fredrickson declared an interest in Agenda Item 3, but reported that, as his interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.

#### 77 Mental Health

The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a presentation (Agenda Item 3) concerning an update on Mental Health from Rachael Wardell and Andrew Sharp on behalf of the Mental Health Action Group. Councillor James Fredrickson welcomed Richard Benyon MP to the Health and Wellbeing Board and advised that the purpose of the meeting was to provide an overview of the work on Mental Health since he last attended on 30 March 2017.

Andrew Sharp began by tabling a diagram of the groups which held governance for mental health in West Berkshire. He advised that since March 2017, a Mental Health Action Group (MHAG) had been established and there was now greater clarity between how professionals, service users and voluntary sector groups linked with each other, with the Health and Wellbeing Board and with other strategic groups.

The aim of the MHAG replicated the aim articulated by Ali Foster as part of the Brighter Berkshire campaign: "To live in a community that is compassionate, that values good mental health, is without stigma and offers mental health support to those who need it when they need it."

In terms of the data, West Berkshire was an outlier regarding premature deaths for people with serious mental illness so this would be a key priority for the MHAG's attention. In addition a patient satisfaction survey had previously assessed 'support during a crisis' to be below average, however this had now been brought back up to average. The data had been used to inform the Health and Wellbeing Strategy aims in relation to mental health.

Areas for action had been identified by service users and in the main these corresponded to actions identified through the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

There were a number of statutory and non-statutory services available to support people with their mental health. Andrew Sharp stated that non-statutory services needed continued support, whether this was financially or in kind, to keep operating. There was more work to be done to ensure that services were joined up.

A lot of good work was already ongoing. The Suicide Action Group had run a training event for employers and the Emotional Health Academy had improved waiting times for children who needed emotional health support.

A key element for the medium-term work programme of the MHAG would be around ensuring holistic support, with an emphasis on employment. This would be through increasing support in-work for those with mental health issues but also to support people to get back into work.

It was noted that in addition to the moral imperative to provide better support for people with poor mental health, there were also economic incentives. Poor mental health cost the country £99billion per year.

Councillor Fredrickson asked for more information regarding the Suicide Action Group's work. Jaqui Letsome advised that 70 people had attended a training event on 11 October 2017, representing 60 employers form a range of businesses. Attendees were developing ways to implement their learning in their workplaces and it was hoped to run similar events in the future. Councillor Fredrickson stated that the group had done well to focus on a plan with clear actions.

Richard Benyon advised that he had been involved in some of the work mentioned and was particularly impressed by Brighter Berkshire which had been an extremely well run, focussed campaign. He praised the Suicide Action Group's work to engage with employers regarding mental health and pressed the need to work closely with small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs). He had seen the good work of the Emotional Health Academy in providing early intervention services.

Offering a challenge to the Board, Richard Benyon noted that West Berkshire was part of the 'tech corridor' and had access to some ground breaking companies. Rural communities in West Berkshire also had, or were about to have, superfast broadband. He asked whether the Board was taking advantage of technological solutions in healthcare.

Councillor James Fredrickson declared an interest by virtue of the fact that he was an employee of Gigaclear, who were delivering the third phase of the Superfast Berkshire project.

Cathy Winfield reported that Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust (BHFT) provided digital services directly to young people with eating disorders. The Support Hope and Recovery Online Network (SHaRON) was a chat room monitored by clinicians which enabled them to support a large number of people compared to traditional face-to-face support. In terms of analytic capability, there was also a Connected Care programme which ensured that different NHS organisations and social care had a better ability to understand patient needs and predict risk.

Rachael Wardell advised that the Berkshire West 10 Integration Board were overseeing a project to introduce assistive care technology which would support all domains of health and wellbeing but particularly support people to live independently for longer. A business case would be prepared before the end of 2017.

Councillor Quentin Webb reported that the Health and Wellbeing Board were also considering an integrated solution to digital communications.

Ali Foster reported that there had appeared to be a culture shift as communities were involved in conversations. Thinking different about services required different people. She noted that the Thames Valley Local Enterprise Partnership had funding available which would provide an opportunity to engage businesses. She reported that the Suicide Action Group had been particularly powerful because businesses had been involved in the discussions.

Councillor Marigold Jacques stressed the importance of the voluntary sector in supporting people experiencing social isolation and loneliness.

Dr Bal Bahia supported the view that there had been a culture change and advised that the Brighter Berkshire campaign had been successful in raising awareness of mental health. He also highlighted that the council's public health team promote the five steps to wellbeing and expressed the view that physical and mental wellbeing were part of one continuum. The Health and Wellbeing Board members had completed Mental Health First Aid training which had helped him to address some of the language his patients were using to describe their own mental health. The data had been eye-opening and GPs were conducting an audit of their patients who had serious mental illness and had died prematurely.

Ali Foster expressed the view that sustainability, particularly of the voluntary sector, would be the key challenge to ensure there was a robust system in place to support mental health.

Councillor Billy Drummond asked whether there were enough doctors, nurses and carers to support people with poor mental health. Councillor Fredrickson stated that the purpose of the work the MHAG had been to understand what assets were available already in West Berkshire's communities and what could be improved. Richard Benyon expressed the view that an area such as West Berkshire could always benefit from more people delivering support. He noted that the government had allocated more money for mental health and would like to know if that was beginning to have an impact in West Berkshire. Cathy Winfield advised that there had been increased investment into Talking Therapies and an improvement in Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) waiting times. Rachael Wardell commented that the Clinical Commissioning Group had invested into the Emotional Health Academy which had improved outcomes along the whole pathway.

Councillor James Fredrickson thanked the officers for the presentation, including the MHAG as a whole and particularly Tandra Forster who had been unable to attend the meeting.

#### **RESOLVED** that the presentation be noted.

## 78 Community Conversations

The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a presentation (Agenda Item `4) concerning an update on community conversations. Susan Powell advised that the Board had set a strategic focus for 2017/18 to 'increase the number of communities where community conversations had successfully run and local action plans had been jointly developed'.

The Building Communities Together Partnership and Team were leading on the work to start new community conversations and join in conversations where they were already happening. The aim was to nurture sustainable communities which made the most of their assets.

A recent community conversation was held with rough sleepers and was attended by 30 people. They had expressed concerns regarding mental health and the desire to have a hub where they could express their needs once. The benefits of the community conversation would be taken forward by the new Making Every Adult Matter (MEAM) Coordinator, once in post.

The partnership had become aware that young peoples' voices had not been present in many of the conversations and subsequently a workshop was held with peer mentors. Many of their concerns had been around anxiety, stress and social isolation; these were fed back to health and education services.

Susan Powell noted that the Board received an update at its previous meeting in September 2017 which set out a detailed update regarding the work of the Hungerford Multi-Professional lens. She reported that Suzanne Taylor, the community anchor, managed the meetings well to keep to the group's aims, whilst ensuring all attendees contributed. There had been a meeting the previous Tuesday on the subject of mental health which had revealed concerns regarding the language used to describe mental health in the community and also revealed a wish to know more about the possible connections between sleep deprivation and attachment behaviours.

Overall community conversations sought to change peoples' perspectives to consider how they could contribute or get involved in resolving issues within the community. Susan Powell advised that her experience with Neighbourhood Watch groups had been that coordinators were satisfied to take on a larger role but almost felt as though they needed permission.

In response to a question from Councillor Fredrickson, Susan Powell further explained the work in Hungerford, adding that by coming together in a forum, professionals working in the area had built capacity to provide better and more streamlined support. They had also empowered the community to build provision to support children with Autism Spectrum Disorder.

Councillor Fredrickson offered a reflection on his experiences at community conversations. He admitted that before he had attended one he would assume that it would be another event with talk but no action, however he felt it was a form of community engagement which removed bureaucratic consultation processes and involved the community in problem solving. He encouraged all Board members to attend a community conversation.

Jim Weems added that he had found community conversations to be a modern and vibrant way of working. He thanked Susan Powell and her team in their role to support these events.

Rachael Wardell recommended that Board members read Community: The Structure of Belonging by Peter Block which illuminated the ways that organisations could engage differently with communities.

Councillor Fredrickson asked how the Board could support community conversations further. Susan Powell advised that elected Members could support them through parish councils and other organisations could best support them by attending them.

Councillor Fredrickson thanked Board members and Richard Benyon for their attendance at the meeting.

RESOLVED that the presentation be noted.

#### 79 Future meeting dates

The Board noted that the next meeting would be held on Thursday 25<sup>th</sup> January 2018 at 9.30am in the Council Chamber.

# 80 Presentation slides

(The meeting commenced at 9.40 am and closed at 10.55 am)	
CHAIRMAN	
Date of Signature	